Strategic Sector Selector Trying to have it both ways

The swift bear market in the first quarter of 2020 gave way to a rapid rebound in equities in Q2. We now suspect that the recession triggered by worldwide lockdowns may have been the deepest since World War II, and it may have also been the quickest. How long it will be depends on how quickly people can get back to some sort of normality. We think there is a risk of another wave of infections but also accept that a vaccine could spur rapid economic recovery. The uncertainty is the main reason why we increase our exposure in our model allocation to defensive sectors by upgrading utilities to Neutral and keep our Overweight to consumer staples. We downgrade energy and automobiles & parts after their outperformance. We keep our Overweight allocation to technology and banks to maintain exposure to both growth and value sectors.

Changes in allocations:

- Upgrades: consumer products & services, utilities (UW to N);
- Downgrades: energy (OW to N); automobiles & parts (N to UW)

	Most favoured	Least favoured
Sector	technology, banks	Automobiles & parts, travel & leisure

Sectors where we expect the best returns:

- Food, beverage & tobacco: decent yield, undervalued, play on interest rates staying lower for longer
- Technology: an opportunity to gain exposure to structural trends at decent valuations
- Banks: attractive valuations, relatively resilient balance sheets, play on strong economic rebound



Notes: On the horizontal axis, we show how far a sector's valuation is above/below that implied by our multiple regression model (dividend yield relative to market). The vertical axis shows the perpetual real growth in dividends required to justify current prices relative to that implied for the market. We consider the sectors in the top right quadrant expensive on both measures, and those in the bottom left are considered cheap. See appendices for methodology and disclaimers. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco

Table of contents

Summary and conclusions	3
Since the last time	
Asset allocation backdrop	3
Changes to sector allocations	
The best and worst of the rest	5
Systematic strategy – Global	9
Valuations – Global	10
Decomposed returns – Global	11
Appendices	12
Appendix 1: Coefficients for variables used in multiple regression model	12
Appendix 2: Sector returns by region	14
Appendix 3: Valuations tables	
Appendix 4: Performance tables	18
Appendix 5: Methodology	19
Appendix 6: Abbreviations	21
Appendix 7: Definitions of data and benchmarks	22
Important information	23

Summary and conclusions

Since the last time

The first wave of infections related to COVID-19 seems to have reaccelerated globally at the time of writing, but there appear to be important regional differences. While the number of new cases has remained at a low level in most of Asia-Pacific and Europe allowing for a tentative reopening of economies, it has stayed high in the Americas and India. When we wrote our previous edition, we were unsure of the strength of any recovery in equity markets. So far, global equities seem to have priced in something close to our best-case economic scenario. However, when we look more closely, it is evident to us that market leadership has remained narrow and sector returns have been somewhat lopsided.



Notes: See appendices for methodology and disclaimers. Returns shown between 31st March 2020 and 30th June 2020. Colours indicate allocations in period considered. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco

Figure 2 suggests this has been an unusual post-bear market rally. While defensive sectors underperformed, few of the early-cyclicals outperformed as we would have expected from previous experience. In fact, the outperformance of automobiles & parts and retailers can mostly be explained by just one dominant stock in each case that command technology-like perceptions and valuations. We also expected financials to do better, although we were right that insurance would struggle. We should also have been more positive on basic resources, their outperformance mostly fuelled by the strongerthan-expected recovery in China, although we got our allocation right in energy and chemicals. Finally, our upgrade of the technology sector worked out well so far given that underlying structural trends seem to have been amplified and accelerated by the shutdowns (we wrote about the sector recently).

Asset allocation backdrop

There are many uncertainties about the future path of the global economy, which will depend upon many factors including: the speed of lockdown release, the behavioural reaction of populations to that release, the extent of any collateral damage, the discovery (or not) of a vaccine, the probability of second round Covid-19 outbreaks (and the likely policy and behavioural reactions). Also, let's not forget the US presidential election on 3 November 2020. For these reasons, we drew up five scenarios in our latest The Big Picture ranging from a "W" shaped multiple outbreak scenario with 2020 global GDP growth of -8.5%, followed by -0.3% in 2021, to a "V" shaped rapid recovery scenario, where GDP growth of -4.8% in 2020 is followed by +11.0% in 2021 (see the implied market forecasts in Figure 3).

Measures of mobility suggest the low point in this recession occurred in early April, with gradual improvement since then. It could be the shortest recession on record. That is good news and could explain the improved financial market momentum. However, it

may also be the deepest recession for some time and the full extent of the damage may need time to be fully appreciated. Central banks may be able to boost market multiples and depress spreads but they cannot prevent the sharp drop in corporate earnings and dividends that we believe are inevitable, nor the jump in credit defaults. This makes it very hard to know what one should be willing to pay for an asset.

For each of our economic scenarios we have constructed a set of financial market assumptions to enable the generation of 12-month projected returns for each asset class, across all regions: first, as one might expect, defensive assets (gold and government bonds, for example) are expected to do better in weak economic scenarios, while the reverse is true for more cyclical assets such as HY, equities, real estate and commodities (note that IG is somewhere in the middle); second, the projected returns in the Intermediate ("Swoosh") scenario are limited and often negative; third, there is a negative skew to the projections (whether looking at defensive or cyclical assets, our projections suggest more downside than upside, except for cash).

Equity markets are running with their eyes wide shut into what feels like a trap: they are focusing on policy support and improved economic momentum, while ignoring the earnings chasm that is opening beneath them. If equities are obsessed with good news, gold seems to be focused on the negative, so that within our Model Asset Allocation we prefer cash, investment grade credit (IG), high yield credit (HY) and real estate. Regionally, we are focused on emerging market (EM), Japanese and UK assets. We do not believe currency hedging is needed in the next 12 months and think that the Japanese yen offers the cheapest exposure to a "safe haven" in periods of market stress, while GBP and EUR both offer value if risk appetite picks up.

Figure 3 – 12-month market forecasts by scenario										
	Current	Best	Good	Inter-	Bad	Worst				
	(30/06/20)			mediate						
Central Bank Rates										
US	0.25	0.50	0.25	0.15	0.05	0.00				
Eurozone	-0.50	-0.40	-0.50	-0.60	-0.75	-0.80				
China	4.35	4.50	4.35	4.00	3.50	3.00				
Japan	-0.10	-0.10	-0.10	-0.20	-0.30	-0.40				
UK	0.10	0.25	0.10	0.00	-0.10	-0.25				
10y Bond Yields										
US	0.65	1.90	1.20	0.80	0.40	0.30				
Eurozone	-0.50	0.50	0.10	-0.30	-0.80	-0.90				
China	2.90	4.00	3.50	3.00	2.50	2.00				
Japan	0.03	0.30	0.10	0.00	-0.35	-0.45				
UK	0.12	1.00	0.40	0.20	-0.20	-0.35				
Exchange Rates/US\$										
EUR/USD	1.12	1.25	1.20	1.15	1.10	1.05				
USD/CNY	7.07	7.00	7.10	7.20	7.30	7.40				
USD/JPY	107.94	115.00	114.00	112.00	105.00	100.00				
GBP/USD	1.24	1.35	1.33	1.30	1.23	1.20				
USD/CHF	0.95	1.02	1.00	0.98	0.94	0.92				
Equity Indices										
S&P 500	3100	3600	3100	2750	1925	1250				
Euro Stoxx 50	3234	3500	2950	2750	1700	1100				
FTSE A50	13962	17000	14600	13250	11500	6400				
Nikkei 225	22288	29000	25000	21000	16250	11000				
FTSE 100	6170	7000	6000	5500	4100	3000				
Commodities (US\$)										
Brent/barrel	42	50	40	30	25	20				
Gold/ounce	1784	1500	1600	1630	1670	1800				
Copper/tonne	6005	7000	6500	6000	4800	3500				

Notes: There is no guarantee that these views will come to pass. See Appendices for definitions, methodology and disclaimers. See <u>The Big Picture</u> for a full explanation of each scenario. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco Global Market Strategy Office

Changes to sector allocations

Equity markets have roared back since March led by sectors that we would have expected to do well when people are stuck at home working and entertaining themselves. Now we are at a stage where we face more difficult choices, because the sectors that have outperformed, such as technology and retailers, look expensive, while the underperformers, for example financials and real estate, still feel too risky when the prospect of a robust economic recovery appears distant. Do we stick with our current allocation and try to play it both ways? Is the trend still our friend?

To a certain extent we think we still need to somehow position for both significant downside risk and some upside risk or a potential rotation into cyclicals and value sectors. This would be consistent with our scenario-based economic and asset allocation outlook but makes our job more complicated. We do not necessarily expect a wholesale change in the macroeconomic environment in the next 12 months in terms of rates, long duration sovereign yields, exchange rates or commodity prices (except perhaps in our best-case scenario – see **Figure 3**). With all that in mind, we are making only a handful of changes in our model sector allocation.

The **energy** sector rebounded as oil prices recovered from their lows (they even went negative for a short period in March). However, we think further upside from current levels will be limited by a potentially fragile recovery, partial reversal of mobility trends and the possible reversal of production cuts by OPEC+. Although headline valuations look compelling – it is the cheapest sector based on dividend yield –, we think that risk and reward are currently balanced. We downgrade to **Neutral** from Overweight.

Higher energy prices would logically be bad news for the **automobiles & parts** sector, so it is not necessarily surprising that its best performer has been an electric vehicle manufacturer. However, without its top performer, the sector would have returned just about the same as the broader market. Its outperformance is now reflected in its valuations: the sector's dividend yield implies a growth rate that is about one percentage point higher than for the market as a whole. We think that this means that the sector has probably priced in our best-case scenario. Downgrade to **Underweight**.

We admit that we underestimated the resilience and diversification in the **consumer products & services** sector. Subsectors, such as computer games studios, food delivery companies and streaming services have acted as "safe havens" during this stayat-home crisis. However, we still think that luxury goods manufacturers and retailers, which include the largest constituents of the sector, will continue to struggle until the economic recovery is well-established. Valuations also make us cautious, but we think the sector will stay relatively resilient. Upgrade to **Neutral**

In an era of low and falling interest rates, defensive value sectors, such as **utilities**, seem to have fallen out of favour. However, we think the bulk of rate cuts are now behind us and that perhaps will allow defensive value to stabilise. In our view, low rates help utilities service their relatively high debt burden, which should offset some of the lost revenue from their commercial clients. The sector has appeared cheap for at least the last 12 months but still underperformed. After a period of underperformance in the rebound since March, we think it may be a useful hedge against potential turbulence in the markets in the second half of 2020. Upgrade to **Neutral**

The best and worst of the rest

We think **industrial goods & services** will struggle with lower demand for transportation equipment that will cascade down the whole supply chain. We consider the sector a late-cyclical and its valuation based on implied perpetual dividend growth has remained high relative to the market and we think that is too optimistic, especially if dividends are cut further. Remain **Underweight**.

Despite the strong outperformance through the market turmoil, we keep our **Overweight** allocation to **consumer staples**. Their valuations do not look demanding, and if rates stay low for an extended period, that should boost those valuations. We prefer to

maintain exposure to defensives until we have more clarity on the economic outlook, and they remain our favoured way to gain that.

We keep our **Neutral** allocation to **healthcare** as we think higher demand for its products may be offset by lower profitability. Vaccines and antiviral medication have not been the highest margin products, so reallocating research and production resources will potentially reduce their capacity to sell and develop their more profitable treatment solutions. The traditional defensive nature of the sector and positive investor sentiment towards it may be offset by lower earnings and dividend growth.

Insurance is the only financial we keep **Underweight**, even though we consider the sector an early-cyclical. It seems to be stuck in a cycle of unending woes, from wildfires to storm and flood-related damages and now COVID-19-related claims. An economic downturn will hinder their business by depressing demand for insurance if people travel less and buy fewer big-ticket items, including cars and property. Low bond yields may also hurt their investment returns crucial for their life insurance and pension businesses.

Our **Overweight** stance in **banks** is more a function of wanting to be exposed to a potentially better-than-expected recovery than our positive view on the sector. We think valuations do not necessarily reflect the persistence of the negative impact of low rates on margins and perhaps the income from government-mandated loans have not been able to offset that. However, if for example a vaccine is developed earlier than we currently expect, or if one of our better economic scenarios materialises, the sector may provide good exposure to potential outperformance, especially if inflation and rate expectations pick up.

We retain our **Overweight** to **real estate**, a sector that has weathered this downtum relatively well so far. That would be a sign of complacency, but depressed valuations – dividend yields have priced in no growth – suggest good long-term potential for the sector. The main risk is that the economy will dip into recession if lockdowns have to be reintroduced and companies in the sector lose more tenants or are forced to offer further rent holidays.

We keep our **Overweight** allocation to **technology**, which we think will continue to benefit from the structural trends accelerated and amplified by the COVID-19 crisis. Valuations look rich, but they are nowhere near the extremes of the tech bubble. We suspect the changing composition of the sector played a part in reducing its volatility and cyclicality, thus making it an unexpected defensive (see <u>our recent report</u> for more details).

	Neutral	Invesco	
Energy	4.2%	Neutral	Ļ
Basic Materials	4.2%	Neutral	
Basic Resources	2.3%	Underweight	
Chemicals	2.0%	Overweight	
Industrials	12.4%	Underweight	
Construction & Materials	1.5%	Underweight	
Industrial Goods & Services	10.9%	Underweight	
Consumer Discretionary	14.5%	Underweight	
Automobiles & Parts	2.1%	Underweight	Ļ
Media	1.3%	Underweight	•
Retailers	5.4%	Neutral	
Travel & Leisure	1.9%	Underweight	
Consumer Products & Services	3.9%	Neutral	1
Consumer Staples	7.4%	Overweight	
Food, Beverage & Tobacco	4.7%	Overweight	
Personal Care, Drug & Grocery Stores	2.7%	Overweight	
Healthcare	11.0%	Neutral	
Financials	14.7%	Neutral	
Banks	6.7%	Overweight	
Financial Services	4.4%	Neutral	
Insurance	3.6%	Underweight	
Real Estate	3.9%	Overweight	
Technology	19.2%	Overweight	
Telecommunications	4.9%	Neutral	
Utilities	3.6%	Neutral	1

Figure 4 – Model allocations for Global sectors

methodology and disclaimers. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco





Note: The chart shows our opinion about which sectors tend to perform best at which stage of the economic cycle, based on our analysis of previous cycles. It also shows where we believe the 10 largest economies are within their economic cycles. Source: Invesco

Systematic strategy – Global



Figure 6 - Global sectors ranked by volatility and dividend yield

A purely systematic approach would favour sectors in the top right corner: telecoms, food, beverage & tobacco and utilities The approach would avoid





Figure 7 – Global sector volatility of daily returns (using standard deviation in the past 3 months)





- Energy, banks and telecoms look the cheapest based on their dividend vield
 - The lowest yielding sectors include retailers, technology and media

Notes: In Figure 6, we rank sectors on the vertical axis by their current 12-month trailing dividend yields. On the horizontal axis, the sectors are ranked by the 3-month standard deviation of their daily returns. See appendices for methodology and disclaimers. Any reference to a ranking, a rating or an award provides no guarantee for future performance results and is not constant over time. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco

Sectors in the top

right corner look

overvalued on

undervalued

This approach

would avoid, for

example, tech,

media, and retailers

Utilities, real

Technology,

Utilities, real

estate and

media, and

estate and energy

look better value

retailers look the

most overvalued

versus our model

financial services

seem the most

predicted ratios

undervalued versus our model-

both measures,

while those in the

bottom left appear





Figure 9 – Global sectors valuation matrix



Figure 10 - Premium/discount to model-predicted ratio*





- Shows the future real growth required to justify current prices
- Technology appears priced for almost 3% real growth in dividends (expensive)
- Six sectors appear priced for negative growth (cheap)

Notes: *% above/below using dividend yield. See appendices for methodology and disclaimers. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco



Decomposed returns – Global



- Only two sectors raised dividends in 2020: food, beverage & tobacco and healthcare
- Most sectors had negative sentiment (multiple contraction)

Only four sectors

dividends in the last 12 months:

food, beverage & tobacco, personal

have raised

Figure 13 – Global rolling 12-month total returns decomposed 60%







most important, except for telecoms and utilities Three sectors suffered from a multiple-related performance drag: energy, basic resources and banks

Figure 14 – Global overall total returns decomposed (annualised, since 1973) 15%



Notes: See appendices for methodology and disclaimers. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco

Appendices

Appendix 1: Coefficients for variables used in multiple regression model

	Food, Bev	Personal	Health			
	& Tobacco	Care	Care	Telecoms	Utilities	Market
Real Oil	0.72	0.30	0.24		0.90	-1.17
Real Copper	-0.01		-0.01	0.02	-0.01	0.01
Consumer Confidence	0.00		0.00	0.00	0.00	-0.01
Manufacturing Confidence		0.01	0.01	0.01	-0.01	0.01
IP			0.79		2.69	-4.76
10y Yield				-6.68	15.51	-18.74
CPI		-3.07	-4.41		-13.40	16.45
Net Debt/EBITDA			-0.09	0.10		
ROE	1.14	-1.29	1.17	0.95	-3.81	-2.60

Figure 15 – Regression coefficients of Global defensive sectors

Notes: IP = industrial production. CPI = consumer price index. EBITDA = earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. ROE = return on equity. Bev = beverage. Only showing coefficients that have a statistically significant relationship with valuations at the 0.05 level. We use the dividend yield relative to market as our dependent variable. See the Methodology in Appendix 6 for more details. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco

Figure 16 - Regression coefficients of Global resource-related and industrial sectors

	Energy -1.09	Resources	Chemicals	& Materials	C * C	
	-1 09				G&S	Market
Real Oil	1.03	0.50				-1.17
Real Copper		-0.01		-0.01	0.00	0.01
Consumer Confidence	0.01	0.01	0.01	0.00	0.00	-0.01
Manufacturing Confidence		-0.02	-0.01	-0.01	0.00	0.01
IP	-2.66	-0.99	-0.67	0.77	0.26	-4.76
10y Yield			1.48		1.02	-18.74
CPI	9.73	10.58	7.48	7.36	-1.37	16.45
Net Debt/EBITDA	-0.14	-0.06		0.19	0.03	
ROE	-3.23	-2.23	-1.72		0.70	

Notes: IP = industrial production. CPI = consumer price index. EBITDA = earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. ROE = return on equity. G&S = goods & services. Only showing coefficients that have a statistically significant relationship with valuations at the 0.05 level. We use the dividend yield relative to market as our dependent variable. See the Methodology in Appendix 6 for more details. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco

Figure 17 – Regression coefficients of Global consumer discretionary and technology sectors

	Autos &			Travel &	Cons		
	Parts	Media	Retail	Leisure	P&S	Tech	Market
Real Oil	0.37	-0.32			0.57		-1.17
Real Copper	-0.01	0.01	0.01		-0.01	0.00	0.01
Consumer Confidence	0.01	0.00	0.00		0.00	0.00	-0.01
Manufacturing Confidence			0.00		0.00	0.02	0.01
IP	-2.81	-0.67	1.04		1.27	-2.17	-4.76
10y Yield	-3.13	4.93		-2.86	4.50	-4.68	-18.74
CPI	13.73			4.67	-2.56		16.45
Net Debt/EBITDA		-0.01		0.09	-0.14	0.08	
ROE	-0.61	0.49	-3.41	0.52	-2.44	0.71	-2.60

Notes: IP = industrial production. CPI = consumer price index. EBITDA = earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. ROE = return on equity. Cons = consumer. P&S = products & services. Only showing coefficients that have a statistically significant relationship with valuations at the 0.05 level. We use the dividend yield relative to market as our dependent variable. See the Methodology in Appendix 6 for more details. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco

Figure 18 – Regression coefficients of Global financial sectors

	Banks	Financial Services	Insurance	Real Estate	Market
Real Oil	0.99		0.32	0.98	-1.17
Real Copper	-0.01	-0.01		-0.02	0.01
Consumer Confidence	0.01	0.00	0.00	0.01	-0.01
Manufacturing Confidence	-0.01	-0.02		-0.03	0.01
IP	-2.20	1.87	-0.53	3.73	-4.76
10y Yield	-6.63	3.03	-2.44	5.79	-18.74
CPI	3.76				16.45
ROE	4.23	0.63	-0.57	-3.05	-2.60

Notes: IP = industrial production. CPI = consumer price index. EBITDA = earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. ROE = return on equity. Only showing coefficients that have a statistically significant relationship with valuations at the 0.05 level. We use the dividend yield relative to market as our dependent variable. See the Methodology in Appendix 6 for more details. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco





Notes: See appendices for methodology and disclaimers. Returns shown between 31st March 2020 and 30th June 2020. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco



Figure 20 – 3m European sector returns relative to market

Notes: See appendices for methodology and disclaimers. Returns shown between 31st March 2020 and 30th June 2020. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco



Figure 21 – 3m Japanese sector returns relative to market

Notes: See appendices for methodology and disclaimers. Returns shown between 31st March 2020 and 30th June 2020. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco



Figure 22 – 3m Emerging Market sector returns relative to market

Notes: See appendices for methodology and disclaimers. Returns shown between 31st March 2020 and 30th June 2020. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco

Appendix 3: Valuations tables

Figure 23 –	Global	absolute	valuations
-------------	--------	----------	------------

	Prie	ce/Earni	ngs	Divi	dend Y	ield	Price	Book	/alue	Price	/Cash I	Flow
			Now			Now			Now			Now
			VS			VS			VS			VS
	Now	Avg	Avg*	Now	Avg	Avg*	Now	Avg	Avg*	Now	Avg	Avg*
Energy	15.5	14.2	0.2	6.2	3.8	1.9	0.9	1.7	-1.6	4.1	6.0	-1.1
Basic Materials	17.4	16.7	0.1	3.3	2.7	0.7	1.6	1.8	-0.6	7.8	7.3	0.3
Basic Resources	14.9	17.1	-0.4	3.5	2.8	0.8	1.4	1.7	-0.7	6.9	7.3	-0.2
Chemicals	21.5	16.8	1.0	3.0	2.9	0.1	1.7	2.0	-0.5	9.1	7.6	1.0
Industrials	19.8	17.9	0.4	1.9	2.3	-0.6	2.4	2.1	0.7	10.0	9.1	0.5
Construction & Mat.	15.3	16.6	-0.3	2.5	2.5	-0.1	1.6	1.8	-0.4	8.0	8.9	-0.3
Industrial G&S	20.7	18.4	0.5	1.8	2.2	-0.6	2.6	2.2	0.9	10.4	9.1	0.7
Consumer Disc.	24.2	18.2	1.2	1.3	2.3	-1.2	2.8	2.1	1.6	9.7	8.1	1.2
Automobiles & Parts	13.6	14.8	-0.2	2.5	2.7	-0.2	1.0	1.5	-1.4	4.7	5.2	-0.6
Media	24.9	21.2	0.5	1.1	2.1	-1.4	2.8	2.4	0.5	8.5	9.1	-0.2
Retailers	38.7	20.7	3.1	0.9	1.9	-1.3	6.4	3.1	3.5	16.6	12.2	1.5
Travel & Leisure	19.5	21.8	-0.3	1.6	1.9	-0.4	2.8	2.4	0.5	7.4	8.9	-0.8
Consumer Prod & Serv	24.6	18.8	1.4	1.2	2.5	-2.1	3.4	2.1	2.4	12.3	10.5	0.8
Consumer Staples	22.0	16.5	1.1	2.8	2.5	0.3	3.2	2.9	0.4	12.3	10.7	0.6
Food, Bev & Tobacco	20.6	18.2	0.5	3.1	2.7	0.5	2.8	2.8	0.1	12.4	10.9	0.5
Personal Care	24.9	20.3	0.8	2.3	2.4	-0.1	4.1	3.2	0.8	12.1	10.4	0.6
Healthcare	28.1	19.7	1.5	1.7	2.4	-0.9	4.3	3.3	0.8	16.8	12.9	1.0
Financials	10.9	15.8	-1.0	3.6	2.7	1.1	0.9	1.5	-1.4	4.4	5.6	-0.9
Banks	9.0	14.5	-1.1	4.5	2.9	1.7	0.7	1.4	-1.6	3.9	6.4	-1.3
Financial Services	14.1	18.4	-0.8	2.7	2.3	0.7	1.0	1.5	-1.1	6.7	7.7	-0.4
Insurance	12.6	16.1	-0.7	3.0	2.4	0.7	1.2	1.7	-1.0	3.7	3.9	-0.2
Real Estate	14.2	19.3	-0.8	3.6	3.2	0.4	1.2	1.4	-0.5	13.0	13.4	-0.2
Technology	30.2	24.0	0.6	1.0	1.6	-0.7	5.5	2.9	2.6	18.8	11.1	2.0
Telecommunications	18.1	17.5	0.1	3.6	4.3	-0.3	1.9	2.6	-0.6	5.2	6.4	-0.5
Utilities	16.0	14.2	0.5	3.7	4.9	-0.6	1.5	1.6	-0.1	6.6	5.5	0.8
Market	19.2	17.0	0.5	2.4	2.7	-0.4	2.0	2.0	-0.1	8.5	7.6	0.5

Notes: *in standard deviations from historical average. Mat. = materials. G&S = goods & services. Disc. = discretionary. Prod & Serv = products & services. Bev = beverage. Data starts on 1st January 1973 for price/earnings and dividend yield and 1st January 1980 for price/book and price/cash flow. See appendices for methodology and disclaimers. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco

	Prie	ce/Earni	ngs	Div	idend Y	ield	Price	Book \	/alue	Price	/Cash	Flow
			Now			Now			Now			Now
			vs			VS			vs			VS
	Now	Avg	Avg*	Now	Avg	Avg*	Now	Avg	Avg*	Now	Avg	Avg*
Energy	8.4	19.1	-1.4	5.8	2.7	3.3	0.8	2.6	-1.7	3.7	8.7	-1.7
Basic Materials	16.3	23.3	-0.9	2.6	1.9	1.4	1.6	2.5	-1.1	7.5	9.8	-0.9
Basic Resources	14.2	21.5	-0.9	3.0	2.1	1.1	1.3	2.3	-1.0	6.2	9.3	-0.9
Chemicals	17.8	24.5	-1.3	2.4	1.9	1.2	2.0	2.8	-1.5	9.0	10.6	-0.9
Industrials	21.7	26.6	-0.8	1.7	1.5	0.8	2.7	3.0	-0.6	11.8	12.8	-0.4
Construction & Mat.	17.8	24.0	-0.6	2.3	1.9	0.7	1.7	2.4	-0.8	9.2	11.4	-0.6
Industrial G&S	22.4	27.3	-0.8	1.7	1.4	0.8	2.9	3.0	-0.3	12.3	12.6	-0.1
Consumer Disc.	24.0	26.9	-0.6	1.5	1.4	0.2	3.1	2.9	0.4	11.5	11.4	0.1
Automobiles & Parts	10.6	19.1	-1.9	2.4	1.7	1.3	1.2	2.0	-2.1	5.0	6.4	-1.1
Media	24.6	30.2	-0.7	1.5	1.4	0.2	3.1	3.3	-0.2	12.1	12.7	-0.2
Retailers	38.7	31.6	1.2	1.0	1.1	-0.5	6.3	4.4	2.5	20.5	18.6	0.5
Travel & Leisure	18.8	34.8	-1.6	1.8	1.1	1.9	3.1	3.5	-0.4	8.9	13.6	-1.3
Consumer Prod & Serv	26.3	28.4	-0.4	1.7	1.6	0.4	3.5	2.9	1.3	15.4	15.2	0.1
Consumer Staples	19.9	22.7	-0.7	2.1	1.6	1.2	3.6	4.0	-0.6	14.5	14.6	-0.1
Food, Bev & Tobacco	23.1	28.4	-1.1	2.2	1.6	1.7	3.4	4.2	-1.9	14.2	16.5	-1.2
Personal Care	28.0	31.8	-0.6	1.8	1.4	0.9	4.3	5.1	-0.8	15.1	16.4	-0.5
Healthcare	35.2	31.1	0.7	1.3	1.4	-0.4	5.2	5.2	0.0	21.3	19.9	0.4
Financials	12.3	23.9	-1.1	3.2	1.9	1.5	1.0	2.0	-1.6	4.9	7.3	-1.4
Banks	9.2	21.4	-1.3	4.3	2.2	1.9	0.8	1.8	-1.8	4.0	8.3	-1.7
Financial Services	19.5	29.8	-0.6	1.8	1.5	0.4	1.3	2.0	-1.2	9.7	9.9	-0.1
Insurance	14.4	24.3	-1.1	2.5	1.6	1.5	1.4	2.5	-1.3	4.3	5.2	-0.8
Real Estate	14.4	27.1	-0.9	3.4	2.5	1.0	1.3	1.7	-0.8	14.5	17.0	-0.6
Technology	43.4	38.2	0.2	0.7	0.9	-0.5	7.0	4.4	1.2	24.7	17.6	0.8
Telecommunications	14.5	23.4	-0.9	4.5	3.0	1.2	2.0	3.4	-1.1	5.2	8.2	-1.0
Utilities	16.2	18.5	-0.5	3.8	3.5	0.3	1.4	2.0	-1.1	6.0	6.9	-0.7
Market	19.7	24.8	-0.8	2.1	1.8	0.8	2.2	2.8	-1.1	9.4	10.5	-0.6

Figure 24 – Global cyclically-adjusted valuations

Notes: *in standard deviations from historical average. Mat. = materials. G&S = goods & services. Disc. = discretionary. Prod & Serv = products & services. Bev = beverage. Data starts on 1st January 1983 for price/earnings and dividend yield and 1st January 1990 for price/book and price/cash flow. See appendices for methodology and disclaimers. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco

Appendix 4: Performance tables

Figure 25 – Global equity sector total returns relative to market

Data as at 30/06/2020		Glob	bal		
	3m	YTD	12m	5y*	10y*
Energy	2.3	-25.4	-30.3	-9.7	-8.3
Basic Materials	6.7	-0.8	-3.4	-1.5	-4.7
Basic Resources	9.9	-0.3	-1.1	-0.3	-8.7
Chemicals	3.2	-1.4	-6.4	-2.6	-0.7
Industrials	0.6	-4.1	-5.2	0.1	0.3
Construction & Materials	-0.2	-5.9	-5.9	-3.1	-3.2
Industrial Goods & Services	0.7	-3.8	-5.0	0.7	0.9
Consumer Discretionary	4.9	3.9	2.9	0.5	1.9
Automobiles & Parts	7.6	-1.7	-2.0	-6.4	-1.7
Media	-0.9	-4.7	-4.7	-2.5	2.2
Retailers	8.7	22.0	20.0	5.7	4.5
Travel & Leisure	-2.0	-20.8	-21.7	-4.4	-0.9
Consumer Products & Services	4.1	4.7	4.5	1.9	1.9
Consumer Staples	-7.1	0.2	-2.5	-1.7	0.1
Food, Beverage & Tobacco	-7.7	-3.2	-7.4	-2.6	-0.6
Personal Care, Drug & Grocery Stores	-6.1	6.7	5.9	-0.4	0.7
Healthcare	-1.9	12.2	16.3	1.9	5.0
Financials	-6.1	-16.3	-17.2	-4.6	-3.1
Banks	-8.6	-22.1	-23.6	-7.9	-5.9
Financial Services	0.8	-7.8	-5.8	0.0	1.5
Insurance	-9.0	-14.2	-16.7	-3.0	-1.0
Real Estate	-6.4	-9.2	-10.1	-2.0	-1.3
Technology	9.0	22.6	32.5	13.0	8.0
Telecommunications	-6.8	2.0	-1.4	-4.5	-2.5
Utilities	-8.7	-2.4	-3.6	0.3	-3.4

Notes: *showing annualised returns. Returns shown are for Datastream sector indices versus the total market index. Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Source: Refinitiv Datastream and Invesco

Appendix 5: Methodology

Multiple regression analysis

We have run a multiple regression analysis to examine how macroeconomic factors influence sector valuations. We have used the dividend yield relative to market as the dependent variable and have run the regressions with the following independent variables:

Monthly series since 31/01/1991:

- 1-year change in: industrial production, consumer price index
- The level of: real oil price (US CPI adjusted), real copper price (US CPI adjusted), consumer confidence index, manufacturing confidence index, 10-year benchmark government bond yield, net debt/EBITDA (only for non-financial sectors), return on equity

We calculate a global measure of industrial production growth, consumer price index growth, consumer confidence, manufacturing confidence and government bond yields using data from four regions or countries representing 65% of global Gross Domestic Product: United States, Europe, Japan and China. The global measures are weighted averages using Datastream global index market capitalisations as weights.

This analysis shows us which independent variables have a statistically significant relationship with sector valuation ratios. In addition, the regression coefficients tell us how much each independent variable influences those ratios. Finally, we use those coefficients to calculate what the valuation ratios should be, based on the model, and compare them to currently observed valuations. In theory, this allows us to determine whether a sector is undervalued or overvalued based on the macroeconomic factors we have used.

Sector classification

We use the Industry Classification Benchmark (ICB).

Leverage and profitability ratios

We calculate Net Debt/EBITDA from sector and market level aggregates supplied by Refinitiv Datastream. They define Net Debt as Total Debt minus Cash, where Cash represents Cash & Due from Banks for Banks, Cash for Insurance companies and Cash & Short Term Investments for all other industries. We tend to exclude Financials from Net Debt/EBITDA comparisons for it is difficult to distinguish debt they sell as a product and debt they incur during the operation of the business. In addition, Refinitiv Datastream define EBITDA – Earnings before Interest, Taxes and Depreciation – as the earnings of a company before interest expense, income taxes and depreciation. It is calculated by taking the pre-tax income and adding back interest expense on debt and depreciation, depletion and amortisation and subtracting interest capitalised.

Decomposed returns

We break down total returns into 3 components to examine what has driven sector performance year-to-date, in the last 12 months and for the whole history of the index. "Yield" shows the income investors received from dividends paid during the period concerned. "Growth" shows the rate of dividend growth, calculated using the percentage change in dividend per share (DPS) values for the sector indices. DPS is calculated as dividend yield times the price index. "Multiple Change" refers to the change in dividend yield between the two periods indicated, plus the change in dividend yield times dividend growth. We use it to measure investor expectations and sentiment regarding the sectors.

Implied perpetual growth models

A valuation cross-check is sought by calculating the perpetual real growth in dividends required to justify current prices. This then allows an evaluation of whether those implied growth rates are realistic.

We use a simple perpetual growth model to calculate implied growth. If Price = Dividend/(Discount Factor - Growth), then Growth = Discount Factor - Dividend Yield. The Discount Factor is equal to Risk Free Rate + (Beta x Market Risk Premium). Everything is expressed in real terms to eliminate the distorting influence of inflation, the output being growth in real terms. The important ingredients are derived as follows:

- The risk-free rate is an equity market capitalisation weighted average of US, UK, Eurozone, Japanese and Chinese 10-year real yields.
- Sector betas are calculated using five years of weekly price movements relative to the global market index.
- The risk premium is derived from US equity and treasury market returns since 1871.
- The dividend yield for each sector is the 12-month trailing yield calculated by Datastream.

Sector allocations

We start by considering where the equity markets are in their respective economic cycles, which determines whether cyclical or defensive sectors are more likely to outperform. Our preferred measure of cyclical sensitivity is beta. Sector betas are calculated using five years of weekly price movements relative to the local market index.

Next, we refine our decisions by looking at how sector yields relative to the market relate to the ratio calculated by our multiple regression model and how much dividend growth is implied in current trailing 12-month dividend yields relative to market.

Finally, we rank sectors by their recent volatility, using the standard deviation of daily returns for the three months before our cut-off date. After that we rank sectors by their 12-month trailing dividend yield. Based on our thematic report about sector strategies, Sector strategies: Control your volatility, combining these approaches provided the best cost-adjusted and risk-adjusted returns in the US, and was among the best in cost-adjusted returns in Europe.

An investment decision is the result of balancing a range of factors and the weightings applied to those factors can vary across time and sectors. "Overweight" suggests that we prefer to hold more of the given sector than suggested by the market capitalisation-weighted "neutral" position. "Underweight" suggests we prefer to hold less of the given sector than suggested by the market capitalisation-weighted "neutral" position. "Neutral" suggests a holding in line with the market capitalisation-weighted benchmark.

Appendix 6: Abbreviations

Changes in allocations on the front page: OW = Overweight, N = Neutral, UW = Underweight

Sector name abbreviations:

Autos = Automobiles & parts Basic Res = Basic Resources Chem = Chemicals Con & Mat = Construction & Materials Cons P&S = Consumer Products & Services Fin Serv = Financial Services Food, Bev & Tob = Food, Beverage & Tobacco Ind G&S = Industrial Goods & Services Pers Care = Personal Care, Drug & Grocery Stores Pers & Hh Gds = Personal & Household Goods Real Est = Real Estate Tech = Technology Telecoms = Telecommunications Trav & Leis = Travel & Leisure

Appendix 7: Definitions of data and benchmarks

Sources: we source data from Refinitiv Datastream unless otherwise indicated.

Government bonds (figure 3): Current values use Refinitiv Datastream benchmark 10year yields for the US, Eurozone, Japan and the UK and the Thomson Reuters China benchmark 10-year yield for China.

Value sectors: stocks or sectors that have low price/book value or price/earnings multiples or high dividend yields. Some of these stocks or sectors may generally trade at a discount compared to the market if investors expect their earnings or dividends to grow at a slower pace than the market. Examples of such sectors are utilities, telecommunications, banks and oil & gas.

Growth sectors: stocks or sectors that have high price/book or price/earnings multiples or low dividend yields, because investors expect them to have high earnings or dividend growth. Examples of these sectors are technology, healthcare and food & beverage.

Defensive sectors: stocks or sectors that have business models that investors consider to be relatively stable throughout the business cycle. We refer to the following sectors as defensive: food & beverage, personal & household goods, healthcare, telecommunications and utilities.

Cyclical sectors: stocks or sectors that have business models that investors consider to be sensitive to the economic cycle. We refer to the following sectors as cyclical: oil & gas, basic resources, chemicals, construction & materials, industrial goods & services, automobiles & parts, media, retail, travel & leisure, banks, financial services, insurance, real estate and technology.

Growth factor: a subset of the S&P 500 in the US and the Stoxx 600 index in Europe and includes stocks in the top third based on both their 5-year sales per share trend and their internal growth rate (the product of the 5-year average return on equity and the retention ratio).

Low volatility factor: a subset of the S&P 500 in the US and the Stoxx 600 index in Europe and includes stocks in the bottom quintile based on the standard deviation of their daily returns in the previous three months.

Price momentum factor: a subset of the S&P 500 in the US and the Stoxx 600 index in Europe and includes stocks in the top quintile based on their performance in the previous 12 months.

Quality factor: a subset of the S&P 500 in the US and the Stoxx 600 index in Europe and includes stocks in the top third based on both their return on invested capital and their EBIT to EV ratio (earnings before interest and taxes to enterprise value).

Size factor: a subset of the S&P 500 in the US and the Stoxx 600 index in Europe and includes stocks in the bottom quintile based on their market value in US dollars for the US and euros for Europe.

Value factor: a subset of the S&P 500 in the US and the Stoxx 600 index in Europe and includes stocks in the bottom quintile based on their price to book value ratios.

Data as of 30th June 2020 unless stated otherwise. This publication is updated quarterly.

Important information

Your capital is at risk. You may not get back the amount you invested.

By accepting this document, you consent to communicating with us in English, unless you inform us otherwise.

This document is for informational purposes only and is intended only for Professional Clients and Financial Advisers in Continental Europe (as defined in important information); Qualified Investors in Switzerland; Professional Clients only in Dubai, Ireland, the Isle of Man, Jersey, Guernsey, Malta and the UK; for Qualified Clients in Israel, for Professional/Qualified/Sophisticated Investors in Bahrain, Jordan, Kuwait, Lebanon, Mauritius, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia, South Africa, Tunisia, Turkey, and the United Arab Emirates; for Professional Investors in Hong Kong, for certain specific sovereign wealth funds and/or Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors approved by local regulators only in the People's Republic of China, for Institutional Investors in Australia, the United States and Singapore; for Wholesale Investors in New Zealand; for certain specific Qualified Institutions and/or Sophisticated Investors only in Taiwan, for Qualified Professional Investors in Korea, for certain specific institutional investors in Brunei, for Qualified Institutional Investors and/or certain specific institutional investors in Thailand and for certain specific institutional investors in Malaysia, upon request, for informational purposes only. This document is only intended for use with Qualified Institutional Investors in Japan; in Canada, this document is restricted to Accredited Investors as defined under National Instrument 45-106. It is not intended for and should not be distributed to, or relied upon by, the public or retail investors. It is not intended for solicitation of any security. Please do not redistribute this document.

For the distribution of this document, Continental Europe is defined as Andorra, Austria, Belgium, Czech Republic, Croatia, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Gibraltar, Greece, Hungary, Italy, Latvia, Liechtenstein, Luxembourg, Monaco, Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Romania, Slovakia, Slovenia, Spain, and Sweden.

This document is not an offering of a financial product and should not be distributed to retail clients who are resident in jurisdiction where its distribution is not authorized or is unlawful. Circulation, disclosure, or dissemination of all or any part of this document to any unauthorized person is prohibited. This document is only intended for and will be only distributed to persons resident in jurisdictions where such distribution or availability would not be contrary to local laws or regulations.

This document is solely for duly registered banks or a duly authorized Monegasque intermediary acting as a professional institutional investor which has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters as to be capable of evaluating the contents of this document. Consequently, this document may only be communicated to banks duly licensed by the "Autorité de Contrôle Prudentiel et de Résolution" and fully licensed portfolio management companies by virtue of Law n° 1.144 of July 26, 1991 and Law 1.338, of September 7, 2007, duly licensed by the "Commission de Contrôle des Activités Financières. Such regulated intermediaries may in turn communicate this document to potential investors.

This document has been prepared only for those persons to whom Invesco has provided it. It should not be relied upon by anyone else. Information contained in this document may not have been prepared or tailored for an Australian audience and does not constitute an offer of a financial product in Australia. You may only reproduce, circulate and use this document (or any part of it) with the consent of Invesco.

The information in this document has been prepared without taking into account any investor's investment objectives, financial situation or particular needs. Before acting on the information the investor should consider its appropriateness having regard to their investment objectives, financial situation and needs.

You should note that this information:

- may contain references to dollar amounts which are not Australian dollars;
- may contain financial information which is not prepared in accordance with Australian law or practices;
- may not address risks associated with investment in foreign currency denominated investments; and
- does not address Australian tax issues.

Issued in Australia and New Zealand by Invesco Australia Limited (ABN 48 001 693 232), Level 26, 333 Collins Street, Melbourne, Victoria, 3000, Australia which holds an Australian Financial Services Licence number 239916.

This document is issued only to wholesale investors in New Zealand to whom disclosure is not required under Part 3 of the Financial Markets Conduct Act. This document has been prepared only for those persons to whom it has been provided by Invesco. It should not be relied upon by anyone else and must not be distributed to members of the public in New Zealand. Information contained in this document may not have been prepared or tailored for a New Zealand audience. You may only reproduce, circulate and use this document (or any part of it) with the consent of Invesco. This document does not constitute and should not be construed as an offer of, invitation or proposal to make an offer for, recommendation to apply for, an opinion or guidance on Interests to members of the public in New Zealand. Applications or any requests for information from persons who are members of the public in New Zealand will not be accepted. The distribution and offering of this document in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this marketing material may come are required to inform them about and to comply with any relevant restrictions. This does not constitute an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such an offer is not authorised or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation. This does not constitute a recommendation of any investment strategy or product for a particular investor. Investors should consult a financial professional before making any investment decisions.

This overview contains general information only and does not take into account individual objectives, taxation position or financial needs. Nor does this constitute a recommendation of the suitability of any investment strategy for a particular investor. It is not an offer to buy or sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy or sell any security or instrument or to participate in any trading strategy to any person in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it would be unlawful to market such an offer or solicitation. It does not form part of any prospectus. All material presented is compiled from sources believed to be reliable and current, but accuracy cannot be guaranteed. Investments have risks and you may lose your principal investment. Please obtain and review all financial material carefully before investing. Asset management services are provided by Invesco in accordance with appropriate local legislation and regulations.

The opinions expressed are those of the authors and may differ from the opinions of other Invesco investment professionals. Opinions are based upon current market conditions and are subject to change without notice. Past performance is no guarantee of future results.

This material may contain statements that are not purely historical in nature but are "forward-looking statements." These include, among other things, projections, forecasts, estimates of income, yield or return or future performance targets. These forward-looking statements are based upon certain assumptions, some of which are described herein. Actual events are difficult to predict and may substantially differ from those assumed. All forward-looking statements included herein are based on information available on the date hereof and Invesco assumes no duty to update any forward-looking statement. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that estimated returns or projections can be realized, that forward-looking statements will materialize or that actual returns or results will not be materially lower than those presented. All information is sourced from Invesco,

unless otherwise stated.

Effective 8/18/17, Invesco Ltd completed the acquisition of Source. Links to documents published prior to this date are from Source as a predecessor firm and are provided for historical and informational purposes only.

Investment strategies involve numerous risks. The calculations and charts set out herein are indicative only, make certain assumptions and no guarantee is given that future performance or results will reflect the information herein. Past performance is not a guarantee of future performance.

The Directors of Invesco do not guarantee the accuracy and/or the completeness of any data included herein and we shall have no liability for any errors, omissions, or interruptions herein. We make no warranty, express or implied, as to the information described herein. All data and performance shown is historical unless otherwise indicated. Investors should consult their own business, tax, legal and accounting advisors with respect to this proposed transaction and they should refrain from entering into a transaction unless they have fully understood the associated risks and have independently determined that the transaction is appropriate for them. In no way should we be deemed to be holding ourselves out as financial advisers or fiduciaries of the recipient hereof and this document is not intended to be "investment research" as defined in the Handbook of the UK Financial Conduct Authority.

Invesco, and our shareholders, or employees or our shareholders may from time to time have long or short positions in securities, warrants, futures, options, derivatives or financial instruments referred to in this material. As a result, investors should be aware that we may have a conflict of interest that could affect the objectivity of this report. Investors should consider this report as only a single factor in making their investment decision.

This document is provided by Invesco Management S.A., President Building, 37A Avenue JF Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg, regulated by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier, Luxembourg, Invesco Asset Management Deutschland GmbH, An der Welle 5, 60322- Frankfurt/M., Germany, Invesco Asset Management (Schweiz) AG, Talacker 34, 8001 Zurich, Switzerland, and Invesco Asset Management Limited, Perpetual Park, Perpetual Park Drive, Henley-on Thames, Oxfordshire RG9 1HH, UK Authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

In the US by Invesco Capital Management LLC, 3500 Lacey Road, Suite 700, Downers Grove, IL 60515.

In Canada by Invesco Canada Ltd., 5140 Yonge Street, Suite 800, Toronto Ontario, M2N 6X7. Terms and Conditions for Canadian investors can be seen <u>here</u>.

This document is issued in the following countries:

- in Hong Kong by Invesco Hong Kong Limited 景順投資管理有限公司, 41/F, Champion Tower, Three Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong. This document has not been reviewed by the Securities and Futures Commission.
- in Singapore by Invesco Asset Management Singapore Ltd, 9 Raffles Place, #18-01 Republic Plaza, Singapore 048619.
- in Taiwan by Invesco Taiwan Limited, 22F, No.1, Songzhi Road, Taipei 11047, Taiwan (0800-045-066). Invesco Taiwan Limited is operated and managed independently.
- In Japan by Invesco Asset Management (Japan) Limited, Roppongi Hills Mori Tower 14F, 6-10-1 Roppongi, Minato-ku, Tokyo 106-6114: Registration Number: The Director – General of Kanto Local Finance Bureau(Kin-sho) 306; Member of the Investment Trusts Association, Japan and the Japan Investment Advisers Association

© 2020 Invesco. All rights reserved. II-GMSOSSS-WP-7-E GL635.

Authors

Paul Jackson Global Head of Asset Allocation Research Telephone +44(0)20 3370 1172 paul.jackson@invesco.com London, EMEA András Vig Multi-Asset Strategist Telephone +44(0)20 3370 1152 andras.vig@invesco.com London, EMEA

Global Market Strategy Office

Kristina Hooper Chief Global Market Strategist <u>Kristina.Hooper@invesco.com</u> New York, Americas

Talley Léger Investment Strategist, Equities <u>Talley.Leger@invesco.com</u> New York, Americas

Arnab Das Global Market Strategist <u>Arnab.Das@invesco.com</u> London, EMEA

Paul Jackson Global Head of Asset Allocation Research paul.jackson@invesco.com London, EMEA

David Chao Global Market Strategist, Asia Pacific David.Chao@invesco.com Hong Kong, Asia Pacific Brian Levitt Global Market Strategist, Americas <u>Brian.Levitt@invesco.com</u> New York, Americas

Ashley Oerth Investment Strategy Analyst <u>Ashley.Oerth@invesco.com</u> London, EMEA

Luca Tobagi, CFA* Product Director / Investment Strategist Luca.Tobagi@invesco.com Milan, EMEA

András Vig Multi-Asset Strategist <u>andras.vig@invesco.com</u> London, EMEA

Tomo Kinoshita Global Market Strategist, Japan <u>Tomo.Kinoshita@invesco.com</u> Tokyo, Asia Pacific

* Affiliated member

Telephone calls may be recorded.